
1 
 

Borough of Windber Council Meeting 
Minutes of October 9, 2023 

 
The regular meeting of Windber Borough Council was called to order by Council President, 
John Holden at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The following council members were present: John Holden, Pete LaMonaca, Dr. Doug 
Ledney, Joe Pallo, Mark Portante, and Rich Rummel. Ron Mash was absent. Ron Allison, 
Borough Manager, Mayor Mike Thomas, and Attorney Joseph Green were present.   

 
Approval  A motion was made by Mr. Pallo and seconded by Mr. Rummel to approve the minutes of  
Minutes September 11, 2023, meetings.  One absent, Mr. Mash, motion carried. 
 
Visitors Julie Sulosky asked if there were any updates on the bridge project on 22nd Street?  Are they  
  going to make that a walk bridge or a drive one?   
 
Julie  Mr. Holden said the borough manager is not here tonight, so he does not have all the details 
Sulosky on it.  He knows that they are working with EADS and PennDOT on a proposal on where to 

go now with that bridge project because now we have a Plan B if that bridge cannot be 
repaired.  So, they are retooling the project if we must go that way.   
 
Mr. Holden said they restricted that bridge to one lane in or out.  Mrs. Sulosky said she 
remembers the council saying something about that side area, but nothing has been done yet.  
It’s the same as it was in the last two months.  Mr. Holden said we will check the status of that 
with Manager Allison.   
 
Mrs. Sulosky asked if the sticks that were put in the yards by the engineer could be taken out 
or do they have to stay in there.  A lot of people have ripped them out.  Mr. Holden believes 
they should be left in.  Again, the borough manager is not here so he recommends leaving 
them where they are until we get an update. 
 
Mrs. Sulosky said that it is getting colder out and where they had an issue with their sewer, 
and the road was cut across from their house the borough said they were going to come and 
patch that.  Two or three months ago the borough was short two or three guys one was off on 
worker’s comp.  Mr. Holden said yes, we are still shorthanded, and we are acting tonight to 
put someone on, but we will still be shorthanded.  Mrs. Sulosky said she would just like to see 
it done before it gets colder.  Mr. Holden noted her concerns.  
 
Mrs. Sulosky thanked the council for having the cones put up during the football games on 
their street.  It saved a lot of hassle.  Mr. Holden said you can thank the school for that they 
asked, and we just put the cones out. 
 
Mrs. Sulosky said she wanted to bring up a circumstance on Saturday that she observed.  She 
said with all of you being borough council members and her working through the VA in the 
public eye people see you as public figures and it reflects on you as borough members.   
 



2 
 

Mrs. Sulosky said she is not going to say who, but they will know who it is.  She was down at 
Rite Aid, and she was sitting there and there was an elderly man in a truck in a handicapped 
parking spot with a plaque.  The poor man was very old, he got out of his vehicle, and he was 
heavy set and could hardly walk.  Mrs. Sulosky said she observed someone who got out of 
their vehicle and was screaming and yelling at this man about moving from where he was 
parked.  When they drove by, they did not see Mrs. Sulosky sitting there.  She wanted to let 
everyone know they are in the public sector and are viewed by the public.  She said they are 
all grown adults and what they do in public is observed by residents.  Mrs. Sulosky said she 
told her husband about it.  She couldn’t believe it happened and it was very disappointing.   

 
Todd   Mr. Koehler asked how often the minutes are updated on the website?  Mrs. Gates said they  
Koehler must be approved by council at the following meeting before they can be placed on the 

website.  Mr. Koehler said he did not see the agenda on the website for this meeting.  Mrs. 
Gates said she would check on that, but she was sure it was up there.     

 
Correspondence 
 

1.  Minutes of the Windber Area Authority’s August 9, 2023, meeting. 
2. Minutes of the Windber Public Library Meeting. 

 
Approval A motion was made by Dr. Ledney and seconded by Mr. Portante to approve bills for 
Bills   September 2023.  One absent, Mr. Mash.  Motion carried. 
 
Approval A motion was made by Mr. Pallo and seconded by Dr. Ledney to approve payroll for  
Payroll  September 8 and 22, 2023.  One absent, Mr. Mash.  Motion carried. 
 
Cash Bal., There were no questions at this time. 
Treasurer 
Report 
 
Council Liaison Reports 
 
WMA/  Mr. LaMonaca said he had nothing to report because the Windber Municipal Authority  
LaMonaca  cancelled their meeting. 
 
WAA/  Dr. Ledney said they have a Water Authority Meeting this Wednesday. 
Dr. Ledney 
 
Library/ The library asked about the alley if public works could look at it.  The main entrance is off  
Holden the alley between Graham and Somerset and is getting pretty chewed up.  Mrs. Gates said she  
  made the public works foreman aware of the need for patching of that alley.   
 
  Mr. Holden said the library started to replace the interior lighting of the library with efficiency 
  lights.   
 
Mayor’s Mayor Thomas was asked to do a presentation on the anniversary of 911 at the town  
Report monument in Mount Pleasant PA. H e  was very well received.  He would like Council to give 

some thought to helping Windber Borough do a similar event next year.  
 



3 
 

He already spoke with the Windber Veterans Association and the Windber School District 
regarding the remembrance ceremony and has received positive feedback. 

 
On Monday, September 18th, Mayor Thomas swore in Tim Layton and Dan Kennedy to the 
Borough Civil Service Commission. Joe Canonni a third member will be sworn in at a later 
date. 

 
On Friday, October 6th Mayor Thomas was invited and attended a breakfast at the Windber 
Elementary school honoring Veterans and first responders for everything they do and have 
done for this country, and this town. The first responders were also honored at Windber 
Stadium, before the Windber-Everett football game. 

 
Solicitor Attorney Green said, as Mayor Thomas stated we had our first meeting of the Civil Service  
Report Board.  It should take another month or so to get those rules and regulations done.  He will 

send those to Andy and see if he wants anything changed or corrected.  Attorney Green will 
then bring them back to Council for review and approval.  Once approved he will put it in 
front of the Civil Service Board, and we will have rules and regulations for the Civil Service 
Board. 

 
Codes  The codes officer is not here but his report is in the council’s packet for review.   
Report 
 
Ballroom 
Event  Mrs. Gates said there will be a borough event on October 21st called “Country Night”.  
Coordinator Entertainer Kevin Dale will be there with his band to play.  The Windber Fire Company  
Report  will be providing the alcohol for the event which was donated to the event.   
 
  Mrs. Gates said there will be a “Holiday Resale” that individuals can participate in on 

November 18th. Individuals will be able to purchase or sell their holiday décor by renting table 
space for $10 during the event. 

   
  Lauren, our event coordinator has continued to do marketing through TICA’s coupons.  If you 

saw the Tribune Democrat today, you would’ve seen a sticker on the front advertising the 
ballroom along with a nice ad inside.   

 
  Lauren is going to continue to do some community outreach to continue with good public 

relations with groups and businesses in Windber and the surrounding area.   
 
  The last page of her report shows the number of bookings for 2023 and 2024.   
 
  Mr. Portante said he would like to see a financial report on the ballroom. 
 
  Mr. Rummel said it mentions a planning commission meeting possibly on Thursday, October 

19th or 26th regarding a subdivision on the code’s enforcement officer’s report.  
 
  Mrs. Gates said she would ask Officer Bloom and email Mr. Rummel as to what that is 

regarding.   
  
 
 



4 
 

Approval Mrs. Gates said this is regarding raising the wages for people starting employment with the 
MUO  borough.  We currently have three positions we are advertising for, and no one will go any 

further than a resume once they hear our wages to start is $13.70.  We would like to up that to 
$16.00 an hour to be more competitive.  In doing so we would raise the rates of the two 
lowest paid non-uniform employees to $16.50 an hour.  We cannot have someone start a part-
time job at a higher wage than our full-time non uniform employees.   

 
  A motion was made by Mr. LaMonaca and seconded by Mr. Pallo to approve a memorandum 

of Understanding between the Borough and the Teamsters Local #110 to raise the starting 
wage for non-uniform employees to $16 an hour and raise the rate for two of the lowest paid 
full-time non-uniform employees to $16.50.  Remarks: Mr. Portante said this sets a precedent 
and we have a contract with them, and we could make this a probationary wage for 2 hours or 
two days or two months in order to bring him up to a higher wage.  Roll call vote: Mr. 
LaMonaca, yes; Mr. Pallo, yes; Mr. Holden, yes; Dr. Ledney, yes; Mr. Mash, absent; Mr. 
Portante, no; and Mr. Rummel, yes. Motion carried. 

 
Approval Mrs. Gates said we sent out an email to council about hiring John Price as the part-time  
John Price facility’s maintenance worker for the ballroom.  The council responded and we did take John 

and tonight we will formally approve him.   
 
  Mrs. Gates said John will be an asset.  He is a good worker, smart and he has his own 

business where he does woodworking.  He is also a photographer.  He was looking for a job 
to aid in subsidizing his current business.  I feel that he is a person who will be vested in the 
borough and wants to keep things tightened up and tidy.   

 
  The public works foreman would also like to use John for public works also.  So, we will use 

him in both places.  Mr. Holden said Cody Weaver, who was working for the ballroom and 
codes, now has a full-time position with the fire department.  Cody will still be available on 
certain dates to assist with plowing.  We are not adding a position just replacing a position.   

 
  A motion was made by Mr. Pallo and seconded by Mr. Rummel to approve John Price as a 

part-time laborer for public works and the Windber Ballroom staff at a wage of $16 an hour.  
Roll call vote: Mr. Pallo, yes; Mr. Rummel, yes; Mr. Holden, yes; Mr. LaMonaca, yes; Dr. 
Ledney, yes; Mr. Mash, absent; and Mr. Portante, no.  Motion carried. 

 
  The council convened to an executive session at 7:26 p.m. for police and personnel matters. 
  The council reconvened from an executive session at 7:44 p.m. 
 
Next   The next council meeting will be held on Monday, October 23, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
Meeting  
 
Adjourn Meeting was adjourned at 7:50 p.m. by Council President, John Holden. 
 
  Respectfully Submitted By: 
 
 
 
  Robin S. Gates 
  Administrative Assistant 


